CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES —AUGUST 1, 2023

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on August 1, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. in the Multipurpose
Room, #1103 of the Richardson Police Department, 200 N. Greenville Avenue, Richardson, TX
75081.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman
Joe Costantino, Commissioner
Gwen Walraven, Commissioner
Michael Keller, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Director — Development Services
Chris Shacklett, Asst. Director of Development Svcs. — Planning
Dan Tracy, Asst. Director of Development Svcs. — Dev. & Eng.
Aaron Zilz, Planner 11

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of July 18, 2023.

Motion: Vice Chairman Southard made a motion to approve the minutes as presented;
Seconded by Commissioner Costantino. Motion passed 6-0.

VARIANCES

2. Variance 23-01 — Zion Church Screening Variance: Consider and take necessary action on
a request for a variance to Appendix A (Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance) of the City of
Richardson’s Code of Ordinances: Article XXII-C, Sec. 22(a) to waive the requirement to
screen parking areas for religious institutions in residential districts from the view of adjacent
single-family residential districts. The property is located at 1620 E. Arapaho Road, on the
south side of Arapaho Road, east of Bell Meade Drive. Property Owner: Anish Abraham,
representing Zion Church. Staff: Aaron Zilz.

Mr. Zilz stated the variance request was to allow a waiver to screening requirements for the
Zion Church along the east and south property lines. He presented a location map of the subject
property and described the surrounding property land use and zoning. He presented the
approved landscape plan from 2016 that reflected the required screening, including a wrought
iron fence with brick pilasters in conjunction with an 8-foot-wide landscape buffer and an
evergreen hedge row.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
August 1, 2023 2

Mr. Zilz presented photographs of the subject property to display existing conditions to depict
where the required fencing should be located. He explained the request is to waive the
requirement for the fence along the east and south property lines. However, the applicant still
proposed to provide the 8-foot-wide landscape buffer and an evergreen shrub row along the
east and south property lines.

Mr. Zilz stated the applicant met with the homeowners’ association prior to submitting the
variance request. The applicant stated approximately thirty (30) neighbors attended the
meeting and were in support of the request. He presented a map showing the properties directly
adjacent to the site that the applicant reached out to regarding the request. The applicant
provided a petition showing all the owners to the south and east of the site were in favor of the
request. Two (2) property owners to the west of the subject property could not be reached.

Mr. Zilz provided a summary of the request and restated that the applicant was requesting to
waive the requirement to provide a wrought iron fence but still intended to provide the 8-foot-
wide landscape buffer and evergreen shrubs.

Chairman Marsh stated he did not believe a wrought iron fence was necessary for screening
since the shrubs provide the actual vehicle headlight screening. He stated that since the homes
backed to the church property, the owners would not typically be looking out at the church
property. He was pleased with the amount of community outreach performed by the church
and that they were able to get support from all the property owners along the east and south
property lines. He was encouraged that the landscape buffer and evergreen shrubs along with
irrigation would be provided.

With no further questions of staff, Chairman Marsh invited the applicant to come forward to
present their request.

Mr. Roy Thomas, Zion Church Board member, 211 Tanner Creek Circle, Sunnyvale, TX, came
forward on behalf of Zion Church. He stated they were only asking for a waiver to the fence
requirement on the east and south sides of the property. He stated the neighbors requested there
be no fence and that the shrubs are better for providing vehicle headlight screening. He stated
they met with the homeowners’ association, and those adjacent to the site were in favor of the
request. They provided a petition to the neighbors so they could show their support.

With no questions of the applicant, Chairman Marsh asked if anyone would like to speak in
favor of the request.

Mr. Anthony Rice, Duck Creek HOA President, 1505 Creekside Drive, came forward to state
that he was personally in favor of the request.

Chairman Marsh asked if there was anyone else present who wanted to speak in favor or in
opposition to the request.

With no other speakers, Chairman Marsh asked for a motion.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
August 1, 2023 3

Motion: Commissioner Costantino made a motion to recommend approval of Variance
23-01 — Zion Church Screening Variance as presented. Seconded by
Commissioner Keller. Motion Passed 6-0.

3. Variance 23-02 — Pet Supplies Plus Parking Variance: Consider and take necessary action
on a request for a variance to Appendix A (Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance) of the City of
Richardson’s Code of Ordinances: Article XXII-D, Sec. 1(h)(1)(1)(2) to allow a 31-space
parking reduction to accommodate an 11,647-square foot retail use within an approximately
63,000-square foot building. The property is located at 1300 E. Belt Line Road, on the south
side of Belt Line Road, west of Plano Road. Property Owner: Mark Cohen, Duane Texas
Properties, LLC. Staff: Aaron Zilz.

Mr. Zilz stated the variance request was to allow a parking reduction for Pet Supplies Plus. He
presented a location map of the subject property and the surrounding retail properties. He
presented a site plan displaying the 11,647-square foot lease space that Pet Supplies Plus
intended to occupy and described the other tenants within the shopping center.

Mr. Zilz stated the applicant calculated the amount of parking required for the shopping center
when the subject lease space was converted from a furniture store use to a retail use. Based on
the proposed change, the site would be deficient by thirty-one (31) parking spaces with 337
parking spaces required and 306 spaces provided. The site received a 64-space reduction in
2022 to accommodate a health club use. He presented a slide displaying multiple parking
counts of occupied spaces observed by the applicant on various days and times. Their highest
number of occupied spaces was on Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday evenings. The highest
number of occupied spaces was on a Wednesday evening when 134 spaces were occupied; 172
spaces were unoccupied. He stated these observations were consistent with staff observations.

Mr. Zilz provided a summary of the request, stating the applicant was requesting to allow a 31-
space reduction to accommodate a retail use.

With no questions of staff, Chairman Marsh invited the applicant to come forward to present
their request.

Mr. Karl Crawley, Masterplan, 2201 Main Street, Dallas, TX, 75201 came forward on behalf
of the owner to present the variance request. He stated his company did extensive parking
counts and found that there were always many spaces unoccupied. He stated the health club
use peak times are different than the Pet Supplies Plus peak times. He stated they typically do
not need more than twenty-five (25) parking spaces to accommodate their peak times, and
there was plenty of available parking. He stated the property to the south also received a
variance in 2007 in addition to the variance granted in 2022 for the health club on the subject
property. He provided some history regarding the previous furniture store use and that no retail
store would be allowed in that space without a variance. He also discussed time of day parking
calculations related to uses that utilize parking at different times of day. He summarized his
request stating he felt it was a good tenant that would not cause a parking issue.

Chairman Marsh asked if this was the last vacant space in the shopping center.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
August 1, 2023 4

Mr. Crawley responded, yes.

Mr. Mark Cohen, Centerpoint Properties, 5330 Alpha Road, Suite 200, Dallas, TX 75240 came
forward representing the property management and leasing for the property. He described how
they have been able to re-tenant the building since purchasing the property. He stated they had
the opportunity to bring in a national tenant to replace the furniture store which would enhance
the shopping center.

Chairman Marsh invited anyone else in favor or opposition to the request to come forward.

Mr. Dick Ferrell, 5948 Meletio Lane, Dallas, TX 75230, owner of the shopping center to the
south, came forward to speak. He addressed his concerns related to the request and stated he
had sent an email regarding his concerns that was provided to the Commission. He stated his
concern was not with Pet Supplies Plus but with future tenants that might require more parking
spaces which could lead to parking on the subject property spilling over onto his property. He
was concerned how that issue may affect his ability to obtain a future parking variance if
necessary. He also expressed concern that the health club use on the subject property had not
yet reached its full membership. His final concern was related to how future restaurant space
on the subject property might be relocated closer to his property. He stated that he was not
approached by the owner of the subject property to discuss these concerns prior to the request,
and he was asking for additional time to review the request and discuss his concerns.

Chairman Marsh asked when Mr. Ferrell became aware of the variance request.

Mr. Shacklett stated Mr. Zilz contacted Mr. Ferrell about the request the Wednesday before
the Commission meeting. He stated staff has encouraged the subject property owner and his
consultant to contact Mr. Ferrell before this request as well as the parking variance request for
the health club use in 2022. It was staff’s understanding the subject property owner had not
reached out to Mr. Ferrell on either occasion.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were notification requirements for variance requests similar to
zoning notification requirements.

Mr. Shacklett stated there are no such requirements.

Chairman Marsh asked Mr. Ferrell if there was a shared parking agreement between the two
(2) properties.

Mr. Ferrell stated there were agreements for ingress and egress and property maintenance, but
there was no shared parking agreement.

Chairman Marsh asked Mr. Ferrell how many parking spaces were on his property.
Mr. Ferrell was not sure of the exact number; Mr. Shacklett stated he believed the site provided

approximately 270-280 spaces but that an additional eighteen (18) spaces had been recently
approved but had not yet been striped.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
August 1, 2023 5

Mr. Ferrell stated they had been striped.

Chairman Marsh asked Mr. Ferrell what the provided parking ratio was for his entire shopping
center.

Mr. Ferrell stated they were in compliance with the City’s parking requirements.
Chairman Marsh asked what the ratio per 1,000 square feet was for the property.
Mr. Shacklett stated staff could calculate that ratio.

Commissioner Walraven confirmed Mr. Ferrell’s request was for a delay and what did he
propose to do if a delay were granted.

Mr. Ferrell stated he wanted the chance to discuss his concerns with Mr. Cohen and the City.
Vice Chairman Southard asked Mr. Ferrell if his property was fully occupied.

Mr. Ferrell stated it was not.

Chairman Marsh asked Mr. Ferrell about the occupancy of his shopping center.

Mr. Michael Sweet, Structure Commercial, 17200 Westgrove Drive, Addison, TX 75001,
came forward to speak. He stated his company handled the leasing for Mr. Ferrell’s shopping
center. He stated there was approximately 18,000 square feet of vacancy. He reiterated their
concern was related to when their property became 100% occupied.

Chairman Marsh asked about the parking ratio for the shopping center again.

Mr. Shacklett stated Mr. Ferrell’s shopping center was approximately 49,000 square feet and
296 parking spaces were provided. He stated the ratio was approximately six (6) parking spaces
per 1,000 square feet.

Chairman Marsh asked Mr. Ferrell how full his parking lot was at peak times.

Mr. Ferrell stated the parking lot was approximately 50% full at peak times, but that would
increase as he leased vacant tenant spaces.

Chairman Marsh stated both properties seemed to have approximately the same number of
parking spaces occupied at peak times. He stated there was a lot of unoccupied spaces on both
sites. He stated the new tenant, Pet Supplies Plus, anticipates a demand for approximately
sixteen (16) spaces so it did not seem that their customers or employees would encroach upon
Mr. Ferrell’s property.

Mr. Ferrell agreed, but he stated that the counts could dramatically change as the health club
membership grows or if restaurant space was relocated from the north side of the building to
the east side of the building which is closer to his property.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
August 1, 2023 6

Chairman Marsh asked Mr. Ferrell about the types of uses he expected to lease the vacant space
in his shopping center.

Mr. Ferrell stated it was likely that a 5,000-sqaure foot lease space on the end of his building
would be restaurant. The other vacancies would likely be retail, restaurant or service uses, but
there are not many tenants that are still traditional retail.

Chairman Marsh asked Mr. Shacklett if parking would be recalculated if an alternate use were
to go into the health club space or any other space on the subject property.

Mr. Shacklett responded that was correct. He stated any additional restaurant space would
require another variance. He stated the owner of the subject property could also come back
later and request to rezone the property to a PD so that a standard parking ratio or set number
of spaces could be required so a variance would not be required each time a new use wanted
to occupy a space. He stated the previous variance was limited to a health club and the subject
variance was limited to retail and could be further limited to a pet sales and grooming use.

Mr. Ferrell stated the total of the previous variance and proposed variance was for a total
reduction of ninety-five (95) spaces. He reiterated his concern was his property could be
impacted in the future, and his ability to obtain a parking variance in the future on his property
could be negatively impacted.

With no other speakers, Chairman Marsh asked if staff had any further comments.

Mr. Zilz reiterated a request to rezone the subject property or both properties to a PD to modify
parking standards in the future was an option.

Commissioner Walraven stated she would be in favor of the request if the use could be limited
to a pet sales and grooming use.

Chairman Marsh stated he wanted to ensure both properties were being treated fairly, but he
feels many areas in the City are overparked. He felt the reduction in overall parking would
leave the subject property at just under five (5) spaces per 1,000 square feet which is typical of
retail centers. He stated both properties currently have ample parking. He stated his preference
would be for neighbors to speak to one another regarding these types of requests. He stated
there will still be time between this meeting and the Council meeting for the two (2) owners to
have these discussions and asked when the meeting might go to Council.

Mr. Shacklett stated the tentative date for the City Council meeting was September 11, 2023.

Chairman Marsh stated that should provide adequate time for the discussion to occur.
Motion: Commissioner Walraven made a motion to recommend approval of Variance
23-02 — Pet Supplies Plus Parking Variance with a condition limiting the

variance to a pet sales and grooming use. Seconded by Commissioner Purdy.
Motion Passed 6-0.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
August 1, 2023 7

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:49 p.m.

Bryan Marsh, Chairman





